
B O A R D  P A C K E T
D e c em b e r  1 3 ,  2 0 2  2



December 13, 2022 

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority  

Date:  December 13, 2022 

Location:    
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT 
2828 WALKER FIELD DRIVE 
GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81506 
AIRPORT TERMINAL- 3rd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 
or  
Electronic Meeting  
Link:   https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82950739951?pwd=MjliajYxQnhCSC95Mi9Rb09sRkJPQT09 

SPECIAL BOARD WORKSHOP AGENDA  4:00pm 

 Call to Order 
 Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Holiday meal 

 Adjournment 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 5:15pm 

 Call to Order 

 Pledge of Allegiance 

 Approval of Agenda 

 Commissioner Comments 

 Citizens Comments 
The Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority welcomes respectful public comments at its 
meetings. The Citizens Comment section is open to all individuals that would like to comment. If 
you wish to speak under the Citizens Comment portion of the agenda, please e-mail your 
comment to the Board Clerk (boardclerk@gjairport.com) 15 minutes prior to the meeting. 
Comments not related to specific agenda items will be addressed during the citizen comment 
section of the agenda. Citizen comments related to a specific action item will be addressed during 
the discussion of that action item. The Board Chair will indicate when you may come forward and 
comment. Please state your name for the record. Presentations are limited to three minutes and 
yielding time to others is not permitted. Speakers are to address the Chair, not each other or the 
audience, and are expected to conduct themselves in an appropriate manner. The use of abusive 
or profane language shall not be allowed. No debate or argument between speakers and/or 
members of the audience shall be permitted.  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82950739951?pwd=MjliajYxQnhCSC95Mi9Rb09sRkJPQT09


December 13, 2022 

 Consent Agenda 
A.  November 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes ____________________________________ 1 

- Approve the November 15, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes. 

B.  November 29, 2022 Meeting Minutes ____________________________________ 2 

- Approve the November 29, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes. 

C. Asset Disposal _______________________________________________________ 3 

- Approve the disposal of one asset and authorize the Executive Director or her 
designee to negotiate a disposal method on behalf of the Airport that brings the 
highest and best value to the airport. 

 Action 
A. 2023 Grant Applications________________________________________________ 4 

- Approve the four 2023 Airport Improvement Program grant applications for the 
Runway 12/30 replacement program and Taxiway Rehabilitation Design and 
authorize the Executive Director to sign and submit the applications to the 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA).  

B. Resolution No. 2022-006: Delegation of Authority ___________________________ 5 

- Adopt Resolution No. 2022-006: Resolution of the Board of Commissioners 
Regarding Delegation of Authority. 

C. Resolution No. 2022-007: Rates and Charges _______________________________ 6 

- Adopt Resolution No. 2022-007: Rates and Charges, effective January 1, 2023. 

 Discussion 
A. Airport Development Plan Presentation – InterVISTAS 
B. 2023 Officer & Committee Appointments 
C. 2023 Draft Board Meeting Calendar 
D. Airline Use & Lease Agreement Update 

 Staff Reports 
A. Executive Director Report (Angela Padalecki) 
B. Finance and Activity Report (Shelagh Flesch)  
C. Capital Improvement Plan Update (Colin Bible) 

 Any other business which may come before the Board 

 Adjournment 



November 15, 2022 Minutes – Page 1 
 
 

  
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Board 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Meeting Minutes 

November 15, 2022 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING    
I. Call to Order  
Mr. Clay Tufly, Board Vice Chairman, called the Meeting of the Grand Junction Regional Airport 
Authority Board to order at 5:15 PM on November 15, 2022 in Grand Junction, Colorado and in 
the County of Mesa. The meeting was hosted in the 3rd floor conference room as well as 
electronically. 
 

 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Approval of Agenda  
Commissioner Marshall made a motion to approve the November 15, 2022 Board Agenda. 
Commissioner Shrader seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries 
  

Commissioners Present: 
   Clay Tufly (Vice Chairman) 
   Ron Velarde  
   Thaddeus Shrader 
   Rick Taggart 
   Erling Brabaek 
   Linde Marshall 
    
Airport Staff: 
   Angela Padalecki (Executive Director) 
   Dan Reimer (Counsel) 
   Ben Peck 
   Cameron Reece (Clerk) 
   Victoria Hightower 
   Ron Edmunds 
   Curtis Hainer 
      

Guests: 
Brad Rolf, Mead and Hunt 
Allison Thomas, Garver 
Colin Bible, Garver 
Harrison Earl, CMT 
Austin Rankin, Mead and Hunt 
John Cessar, Mead and Hunt 
Harrison Earl, CMT 
Kyle Williams, AECOM 
Gene Robertson 
Jennifer Robertson 
Tyler McClymond, McClymond Aviation 
 



November 15, 2022 Minutes – Page 2 
 
 

 
IV. Commissioner Comments 
Commissioner Brabaek Commented on a situation where SCL Health Medivac  helicopter based in 
Moab had an incident where a duck went through the windshield during flight and had to stay at 
the Grand Junction Regional Airport for repairs. Commissioner Brabaek offered them to use his 
hangar due to no other space being available.  The Helicopter was in the hangar for repairs for 
approximately 2 days. Commissioner Brabaek commented it made him violate the airports 
Minimum Standards. Commissioner Brabaek challenged other Commissioners and staff to 
reevaluate the current Minimum Standards to make more suitable for current tenants.  
Commissioner Tufly commented that is something we should all look into more and be better 
prepared to discuss for a future meeting. 
 
Commissioner Marshall commented on congratulating Commissioner Taggart is his newly elected 
position for House District 55. 
 
V. Citizen Comments 
No Citizen Comments were made 
 
VI. Employee Recognition Presentation 

 
VII. Consent Agenda 
 

A. September 20, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
Approval of September 20, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 
 

B. October 4, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
Approval of October 20, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
 

C. October 18, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
Approval of October 18, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 

 
D. Plante Moran 2022 Audit Engagement Letter for 2022 Audits 

Approve the purchase of Landscaping Rock for $24,399 of Airport funds and authorize the 
Executive Director, or her designees to sign the related purchase documents. Approve the 
audit engagement letter with Plante Moran for the 2022 audits. 
 

E. Airport Snow Removal Equipment Purchase 
Approve the purchase and shipment of used Snow Removal Equipment not to exceed 
$80,000 of Airport funds and authorize the Executive Director, or her designees to sign the 
related purchase documents.  
 

F. CO Family Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI)  
Decline all participation in the Family Medical Leave Insurance and authorize the Executive 
Director to provide notice thereof. 



November 15, 2022 Minutes – Page 3 
 
 

 
G. Sage Intacct Accounting Software Subscription Renewal 

Authorize the renewal of the Sage Intacct accounting software subscription in the amount 
of $15,912 for the contract period of December 21, 2022 through December 20, 2023. 
 

H. Air Service Incentive Program Revisions 
Adopt the proposed revisions to the Air Service Incentive Program. 
 

I. Employee Handbook Amendment 
Approval of amendment to the Airport Employee Handbook updating the use of Paid Time 
Off, Paid Sick Leave, Bereavement, and Dental and Vision Insurance Benefit Descriptions 
to reflect current practices. 
 

J. 2023 CMT / GJRAA Professional Services Agreement 
Approve the standard agreement for professional services with Crawford, Murphy, & Tilly, 
Inc. (CMT) for air service development consulting services and delegate authority to the 
Executive Director to authorize work under proposal up to $90,000. 
 

K. Health Insurance Renewal & Schedule Change 
Approve the proposed health insurance plan and cost sharing as outlined in the Agenda 
Item Summary for the plan year of January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 and 
authorize the Executive Director to sign all plan documents and approve invoices. 

 
Commissioner Brabaek requested moving Consent Agenda Item H. Air Service Incentive Program 
Revisions to Action Agenda Item C. and Consent Agenda Item J. 2023 CMT/GJRAA Professional 
Services Agreement to Action Agenda Item D. 
Commissioner Velarde made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner Brabaek 
seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries. 
 
VIII. Action 

 
A. Resolution No. 2022-004 to Adopt 2023 Budget and Appropriate Funds for 2023 

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-004 to adopt the 2023 Budget and appropriate funds for 2023. 
 

Commissioner Shrader made a motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2022-004 to adopt the 2023 Budget 
and appropriate funds for 2023. Commissioner Velarde seconded the motion. Roll Call Vote: 
Commissioner Shrader, yes; Commissioner Brabaek, yes; Commissioner Marshall, yes; 
Commissioner Tufly, yes; Commissioner Velarde, yes, and Commissioner Taggart, yes. The motion 
carries. 
 
 
 
 
 



November 15, 2022 Minutes – Page 4 
 
 

B. Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Concession Agreement 
Approve the standard form Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Concession Agreement and 
authorize the Executive to approve individual agreements using this standard form in 
accordance with the April 19, 2022 Delegation of Authority. 
 

Commissioner Brabaek made a motion to Approve the standard form Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing 
Concession Agreement and authorize the Executive to approve individual agreements using this 
standard form in accordance with the April 19, 2022 Delegation of Authority. Commissioner 
Shrader seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries. 
 

C. Air Service Incentive Program Revisions 
Adopt the proposed revisions to the Air Service Incentive Program. 

 
Commissioner Brabaek made a motion to Adopt the proposed revisions to the Air Service Incentive 
Program. Commissioner Velarde seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries. 
 

D. 2023 CMT/GJRAA Professional Services Agreement 
Approve the standard agreement for professional services with Crawford, Murphy, & Tilly, 
Inc. (CMT) for air service development consulting services and delegate authority to the 
Executive Director to authorize work under proposal up to $90,000. 

 
Commissioner Marshall made a motion to Approve the standard agreement for professional 
services with Crawford, Murphy, & Tilly, Inc. (CMT) for air service development consulting services 
and delegate authority to the Executive Director to authorize work under proposal up to $90,000. 
Commissioner Shrader seconded the motion. Voice Vote: Commissioner Shrader, yes; 
Commissioner Marshall, yes; Commissioner Tufly, yes; Commissioner Velarde, yes; Commissioner 
Taggart, yes; Commissioner Brabaek, no; The motion carries. 
 
 
IX. Discussion 

A. Q2 Catchment Study Update – Harrison Earl, CMT 
B. 2023 Board Meeting Calendar 
C. Rates and Charges 

 
X. Staff Reports 

A. Executive Director Report (Angela Padalecki) 
B. Capital Improvement Plan Update (Colin Bible) 
C. Legal Update – Dan Reimer 

 
XI. Any other business which may come before the Board 
 
XII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:28pm 
 



November 15, 2022 Minutes – Page 5 
 
 

Audio recording of the complete meeting can be found at 
https://gjairport.com/Board_Meetings 

  
 
Clay Tufly, Board  Vice Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Cameron Reece, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://gjairport.com/Board_Meetings


November 29, 2022 Minutes – Page 1 
 
 

  
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Board 

Special Board Meeting 
 Meeting Minutes 

November 29, 2022 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING    
I. Call to Order  
Mr. Tom Benton, Board Chairman, called the Meeting of the Grand Junction Regional Airport 
Authority Board to order at 5:15 PM on November 29, 2022 in Grand Junction, Colorado and in 
the County of Mesa. The meeting was hosted in the 3rd floor conference room as well as 
electronically. 

 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Approval of Agenda  
Commissioner Brabaek made a motion to approve the November 29, 2022 Special Board Agenda. 
Commissioner Tufly seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries.  
  
IV. Commissioner Comments 
No Commissioner Comments were made 
  

Commissioners Present: 
   Tom Benton (Chairman)  
   Clay Tufly (Vice Chairman) 
   Ron Velarde  
   Thaddeus Shrader 
   Linde Marshall 
   Erling Brabaek 
   Rick Taggart 
    
 
Airport Staff: 
   Angela Padalecki (Executive Director) 
   Dan Reimer (Counsel) 
   Cameron Reece (Clerk) 
   Shelagh Flesch 
      

Guests: 
Sam Siebold, Twin Otter 
Ryan Biller, Daily Sentinel 
Clayton Baldwin 
Kevin Christofferson, General Aviation Tenant 



November 29, 2022 Minutes – Page 2 
 
 

V. Citizen Comments 
No Citizen Comments were made 
 
VI. Action 

 
A. SIB Loan Resolution No. 2022-005: Colorado State Infrastructure Bank Application 

Adopt resolution no. 2022-005 to approve and submit the application for Colorado SIB loan 
23-GJT-SIB-01. 

 
Commissioner Tufly made a motion Adopt resolution no. 2022-005 to approve and submit the 
application for Colorado SIB loan 23-GJT-SIB-01. Commissioner Marshall seconded the motion. Roll 
Call Vote: Commissioner Shrader, yes; Commissioner Brabaek, no; Commissioner Marshall, yes; 
Commissioner Tufly, yes; Commissioner Velarde, yes, Commissioner Benton, yes, and 
Commissioner Taggart, yes. The motion carries.  
 
VII. Any other business which may come before the Board 
 
VIII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:50pm 
 

Audio recording of the complete meeting can be found at 
https://gjairport.com/Board_Meetings 

  
 
Tom Benton, Board Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Cameron Reece, Clerk to the Board 

https://gjairport.com/Board_Meetings


Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 
Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Asset Disposal Approval 
PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the disposal of one asset and authorize the Executive Director or 
her designee to negotiate a disposal method on behalf of the Airport that 
brings the highest and best value to the airport. 

SUMMARY: Staff continually evaluates the fleet and equipment needs of the Airport and 
have identified one unit they recommend disposal of through sale or trade-in:  

Year Description 

Original 
Purchase 

Price 
Anticipated 
Sale Price 

1989 International Tandem Dump Truck $29,350  $22,000 

 
The 1989 Dump Truck is operational but only serves one purpose as a dump 
truck related to summer seasonal work and is not used during the winter 
months. The Airport recently purchased a newer snowplow unit that also has 
a dump bed that could better fulfill those duties in the summer months. 
 
The preferred method of disposal is to sell the unit locally to a dealership or 
at auction. Staff have determined estimated sale price through discussions 
with equipment dealers for trade-in value, or prices for other similar pieces of 
equipment that could be found at an auction site or online.  
If the equipment does not sell, staff request the Board authorize the 
Executive Director to negotiate disposal by trading the unit to a dealer for 
credit towards other equipment purchases.  

The asset has an original purchase price of more than $15,000 and therefore 
requires Board approval for disposal in accordance with the asset disposal 
policy.  

REVIEWED BY:  Executive Director, and Legal Counsel 

FISCAL IMPACT: Up to $22,000 of unbudgeted cash value to the Airport 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
STAFF CONTACT: Dylan Heberlein 

Office: 970.248.8596 
Email: dheberlein@gjairport.com 

 

mailto:dheberlein@gjairport.com


Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 
Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: 2023 Airport Improvement Program Grant Applications  

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the four 2023 Airport Improvement Program grant applications for 
the Runway 12-30 replacement program and Taxiway Rehabilitation Design 
and authorize the Executive Director to sign and submit the applications to 
the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). 

SUMMARY: The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant applications are for projects 
listed on the Airport’s 2023 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and that have 
been discussed with the FAA, GJRAA’s on-call engineers, and the program 
manager. Based on guidance from the FAA, the grant funding request for 
2023 has been split into four separate grant applications as follows:  

1. Construction of the next earth work packages associated with the 
Runway 12-30 replacement program - $10,530,000; 

2. Design of Runway 12-30 pavement - $1,800,000; 
3. Construction of the temporary FAA navigational aids for the Runway 

12-30 replacement program - $4,320,000; and 
4. Design of Taxiway A (Phase III) and Taxiway C Rehabilitation -

$639,000 

The amounts listed above represent 90% of the anticipated project costs for 
each in expectation that GJRAA will be required to fund 10%. These projects 
were included in the 2023 budget. If the applications are accepted and 
funding is awarded, the Grant Offers will be presented to the Board for 
individual approval.  

REVIEWED BY:  Executive Director, Program Manager (Colin Bible) and Legal Counsel (Dan 
Reimer)  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

Funding Sources                                              
Federal - $17,289,000 
CDOT - $250,000 
GJRAA - $1,671,000 
Total Project Cost - $19,210,000 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Construction: Earth Work Grant Application 
2. Design: RW 12-30 Pavement Grant Application 
3. Construction: Temporary NAVAID Grant Application 
4. Design: TW A and TW C Rehabilitation Grant Application 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Padalecki 
apadalecki@gjairport.com 
Office: 970-248-8588 

 

mailto:apadalecki@gjairport.com












































































































































Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 
Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Resolution No. 2022-006 – Delegation of Authority 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Number 2022-006: Resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners Regarding Delegation of Authority.  
 

SUMMARY: When the Board adopted the Delegation of Authority in 2021, the Board 
determined that the resolution should be reviewed and considered at least 
once per year. The current resolution sunsets on January 31, 2023. 

In April 2022, the Board amended the resolution to address requests and 
applications for financial assistance. The Board has not requested any further 
changes in the authorities delegated to the Executive Director or the 
authorities reserved to the Board. As a result, the only change in the 
resolution is to extend the sunset date, in Section 6, to January 31, 2024.  

REVIEWED BY:  Legal Counsel  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution Number 2022-006: Resolution of the Board of Commissioners 
Regarding Delegation of Authority  
 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Padalecki, Executive Director 
apadalecki@gjairport.com  
Phone: (970) 248-8588 

 

mailto:apadalecki@gjairport.com


 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-006 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 REGARDING DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (“GJRAA”) is the owner and 
operator of the Grand Junction Regional Airport (“Airport”), located in Grand Junction, 
Colorado; and 
 
WHEREAS, GJRAA was formed under and derives its authority from C.R.S. § 41-3-101, et. 
seq., known as the “Public Airport Authority Act” (the “Act”), and is governed by the GJRAA 
Board of Commissioners (“Board”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 41-3-105(1) of the Act provides, “All powers, privileges, and duties vested 
in or imposed upon any authority organized pursuant to the provisions of this article shall be 
exercised and performed by and through the board except as otherwise provided by law; but the 
exercise of any and all executive, administrative and ministerial powers may be by said board 
delegated and redelegated to any of the officers created or by the board acting under this article”; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 41-3-105(5)(f) of the Act provides that the Board shall have the power 
“[t]o prescribe by resolution a system of business administration; to create any and all necessary 
offices; [and] to establish and reestablish the powers and duties and compensation of all officers 
and employees”; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 41-3-105(5)(g) of the Act provides that the Board shall have the power 
“[t]o employ clerical, legal, consulting, and engineering assistance and labor, and to delegate and 
redelegate to such employees the powers conferred by this article, under such conditions and 
restrictions as shall be fixed by the board to authorize such employees to bind the authority by 
contract”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board previously has delegated authority over Airport matters in, for example 
and without limitation, (i) annual resolutions on financial matters, including both banking and 
expenditures; (ii) the annual resolution adopting a budget; (iii) the Grand Junction Regional 
Airport Authority Purchasing and Procurement Policy (current version dated Aug. 20, 2019); (iv) 
policies on the capitalization and disposal of Airport assets; and (v) other Board resolutions and 
policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board believes that formal delegation over certain matters not addressed in 
other resolutions and policies is desirable in the exercise of the Board’s obligations under the 
Act; would remove ambiguity about the proper authority for many routine and recurring Airport 
matters; and further that such delegation should be revisited annually. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by this Resolution, the Board hereby delegates authority to the 
Executive Director of the Airport and reserves other powers unto itself, as follows:  



 2 

 
1. The following powers shall be delegated to the Executive Director: 

 
a. To initiate procurements for goods and services. 

 
b. To enter into contract negotiations, including with the apparent best proposer in a 

solicitation, and present contracts for the Board’s consideration. 
 

c. To authorize payment of invoices submitted by vendors, contractors and 
consultants in accordance with executed contracts (for services) and purchase 
orders (for goods), except to the extent expenditure approval is reserved to the 
Board in the then-current Purchasing and Procurement Policy or other source. 

 
d. To extend or renew a contract or agreement where the GJRAA’s consent is 

ministerial in nature and/or the power to extend or renew is delegated to the 
Executive Director in the contract or agreement. 

 
e. To declare in default or terminate an agreement with which second party is not in 

compliance. 
 

f. To approve permits and licenses for access to Airport property for terms not to 
exceed thirty (30) days and not to exceed ninety (90) days total, including 
extensions and renewals. 

 
g. To set compensation for Authority employees in accordance with the annual 

budget approved by the Board. 
 

h. To submit statements of interest, funding requests, lists of grant-eligible projects, 
and applications for grants and other financial assistance, provided the following 
conditions are met:  (i) the submittal does not contractually commit the GJRAA to 
accept the grant or assistance, if awarded; (ii) the percentage local match to be 
required of the GJRAA does not exceed fifty percent of the total award value or 
two million dollars ($2,000,000); and (iii) the Executive Director consults with 
and obtains the consent of the Board’s Executive Committee prior to the 
submission. This delegation does not apply to the powers reserved to the Board in 
Section 2(c) below, concerning certain grant applications submitted to the Federal 
Aviation Administration (“FAA”). 

 
i. To request airport improvement program grant amendments from the FAA and 

authorize change orders to contractors funded by the grant, provided the change 
orders do not increase the local match on the part of the GJRAA authorized in the 
grant acceptance. 

 
j. To execute airline operating license agreements, upon establishing that the airline 

is capable to satisfy the terms and conditions of the license and the license 



 3 

conforms in all material respect to the then-current standard form approved by the 
Board. 

 
k. To execute airline incentive agreements (marketing and operations), provided the 

airline is eligible in accordance with the airline incentive policy approved by the 
Board and the agreement conforms in material respects to the then-current 
standard form approved by the Board. 

 
l. To consent to the sublease of Airport property, upon establishing that the sublease 

agreement conforms to the then-current standard form approved by the Board. 
 

m. To approve commercial operator permits for the conduct of commercial 
aeronautical activities, upon establishing that the operator complies with the 
Airport Minimum Standards and the permit conforms to the then-current standard 
form approved by the Board. 

 
n. To approve the form of and execute avigation easements. 

 
o. To prepare such additional standard form contracts, permits, licenses and other 

agreements, provided that the authority to approve such agreements shall be 
reserved to the Board. 

 
p. To develop, adopt, implement and enforce Standard Operative Procedures, 

directives and policies that implement, interpret, administer and enforce Board 
policies and/or that direct the conduct of GJRAA employees. 

 
q. To develop, adopt, and administer internal forms and agreements for GJRAA 

employees, including, by way of example but without limitation:  parking permit 
agreement, key agreement, uniform policy, purchase card agreement, motor 
vehicle record authorization form, and employee conflict-of-interest form. 

 
r. To develop and implement the Airport Certification Manual and associated 

Letters of Agreement with the FAA; Airport Security Program; Airport 
Emergency Program; Tarmac Delay Contingency Plan; and such similar and 
related plans concerning the operation and management of the Airport as may be 
required to be prepared under federal law and regulation. 

 
s. To issue Notices to Airmen, including the authority to temporarily close the 

Airport in coordination with the FAA. 
 

t. To submit the Airport Capital Improvement Plan to the State of Colorado and the 
FAA. 

 
u. To develop and implement policies and programs to preclude unlawful 

discrimination and promote participation in Airport programs by socially and 
economically disadvantaged individuals, in accordance with federal law and 



 4 

regulation, including the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program, 
Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (ACDBE) Program, Title 
VI Nondiscrimination Program, and Language Assistance Plan. 

 
v. To develop and implement a document retention program in accordance with all 

applicable legal requirements. 
 

2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board recognizes that the following non-exclusive list 
of powers rest with and shall be reserved to the Board: 
 

a. To bind the GJRAA by contract, except as explicitly delegated to the Executive 
Director hereunder or by separate resolution or writing, including contracts for the 
purchase of goods and services; and leases, licenses, permits and other 
agreements providing for the use and possession of Airport property. 
 

b. To amend the Airport By-Laws. 
 

c. To approve the application for grant funding through the FAA Airport 
Improvement Program and to approve grant agreements and co-sponsorship 
agreements. 

 
d. To approve the form of standard agreements. 

 
e. To consent to the assignment of lease agreements and other contracts. 

 
f. To approve, revise and rescind policies applicable to the GJRAA and Airport, 

including but not limited to: 
 

i. Airport operating policies and procedures, such as the Lease Policy, 
Design Intent Guidelines, Non-Commercial Use Policy, General Aviation 
Minimum Standards, Colorado Open Records Act Policy and Procedures, 
Airport Rules and Regulations, and Nondiscrimination Policy. 
 

ii. Board and employee conduct policies, such as the Code of Professional 
Conduct, Airport Compliance Program, Employee Handbook, Bring Your 
Own Device Policy, and Whistleblower Policy. 

 
iii. Financial policies, such as the Grant Management and Oversight Policy, 

Purchasing and Procurement Policy, Asset Capitalization Policy, and 
Asset Disposal Policy. 

 
g. The power to adopt such resolutions as necessary and desirable in the interests of 

the GJRAA and Airport, consistent with the Act and in furtherance of the 
GJRAA’s role as owner, operator and sponsor of the Airport. 
 



 5 

3. The Executive Director may further delegate to her designee(s) the powers conferred in 
Section 1, provided that any further delegation of powers not documented in the 
Purchasing and Procurement Policy that contractually bind or obligate the GJRAA must 
be in writing and kept with this resolution in the records of the Airport. 
 

4. Nothing in this Resolution shall be construed to prohibit the Executive Director and her 
staff, in their discretion, from bringing to the Board for its approval matters which have, 
by this Resolution, been deemed delegated to the Executive Director and her designees. 
 

5. This Resolution supersedes and replaces Resolution 2014-02 (Resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners Regarding Authority to Execute Standardized Agreements) but does not 
otherwise supersede or replace any other Board resolution or policy, except to the extent 
of a direct conflict, in which event this resolution shall control. 
 

6. The Board intends that the delegations of authority granted by this Resolution shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual basis. Unless renewed by the Board, 
the authority granted to the Executive Director by this resolution shall expire at 11:59 pm 
on January 31, 2024. 

 
 
ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2022. 
 
 
   
Board Members Voting Aye:    Those Voting Nay: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Tom Benton, Chairman 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Cameron Reece, Clerk 
 



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority 

Agenda Item Summary 

TOPIC: Resolution No. 2022-007 to Approve Rates and Charges 

PURPOSE: Information ☐ Guidance ☐ Decision ☒ 

RECCOMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2022-007: Rates and Charges, effective January 1, 2023. 
 

SUMMARY: The annual rates and charges resolution enacts rates for the coming year, and 
the approved 2023 budget reflects the proposed rates. 
 
The Board approved an increase in the public parking rates in April 2022. 
 
The proposed changes in rates for the upcoming year were presented to the 
Board at its regular meeting on November 15, 2022. Staff has not made any 
further adjustments in the proposed rates. Proposed increases include 
airline/terminal fees, security/badge fees, parking violation fees, and 
administrative fees for staff time. 
 
The attached resolution also includes some changes to the narrative portion 
of the resolution (Recitals and Section I) to better align with the form of other 
Board resolutions. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Executive Director and Legal Counsel 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

The 2023 Adopted Budget reflects these anticipated changes 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Board Resolution 2022-007: Rates and Charges 
 

STAFF CONTACT:                 Shelagh Flesch 
sflesch@gjairport.com 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-07  

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
ESTABLISHING RATES AND CHARGES FOR 

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT 
 

WHEREAS, the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (“GJRAA”) is the owner and operator 
of the Grand Junction Regional Airport (“Airport”) located in Grand Junction, Colorado; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Colorado Public Airport Authority Act, (C.R.S. § 41-3-106(1)(h)), authorizes 
GJRAA to “exact and require charges, fees, and rentals, together with a lien to enforce the 
payment”; and 
 
WHEREAS, federal law (49 U.S.C. § 40116(e)(2)), recognizes the right of an airport proprietor to 
impose “reasonable rental charges, landing fees, and other service charges from aircraft operators 
for using airport facilities”; and 
 
WHEREAS, federal law (49 U.S.C. § 47107(a)(13)) and GJRAA’s contractual commitments to the 
federal government require that GJRAA “maintain a schedule of charges for use of facilities and 
services at the airport that will make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the 
circumstances existing at the airport, including the volume of traffic and economy of collection”; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the federal government does not set the level of fees charged at airports (49 U.S.C. § 
47129(a)(3)), but is authorized to adjudicate disputes as to whether a fee is reasonable and not 
unjustly discriminatory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached schedule of rates and charges is designed and intended to (i) compensate 
GJRAA for its costs to accommodate Airport tenants and users; (ii) make the Airport as financially 
self-sustaining as possible; (iii) capture a percentage of revenues by businesses and entities 
accessing the Airport for commercial purposes; and (iv) make the Airport competitive and attractive 
to aeronautical and non-aeronautical users, as compared to airports of comparable size and traffic. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by this Resolution, the Board hereby resolves and directs as follows: 
 

1. The Board adopts the attached schedule of rates and charges, effective as of January 1, 2023. 
 

2. The attached schedule of rates and charges shall apply, without limitation, to the following 
categories of Airport tenants and users:  Air Carriers, General Aviation, Aircraft Ground 
Service Providers, Ground Transportation Operators (including Transportation Network 
Companies), Rental Car Concessionaires, Peer-to-Peer Car Sharing Operators, Fuel 
Providers, and other users of Airport facilities, supplies and services. 
 

3. The attached schedule of rates and charges shall be implemented and imposed upon the 
above-described categories of Airport tenants and users as follows: 

 
a. The applicable rates and charges shall be incorporated within any and all leases, 

licenses, permits, contracts and other agreements entered into after the effective date 
hereof. 



Page 2 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

 
b. The applicable rates and charges shall apply in the case of any existing lease, license, 

permit, contract or other agreement that explicitly requires the Airport tenant or user 
to pay rates and charges as prescribed by the Board. 
 

c. The applicable rates and charges shall apply to any user of the Airport or Airport 
services conducting an activity covered by the schedule of rates and charges that 
does not operate pursuant to a lease, license, permit, contract or other agreement with 
GJRAA. 

 
4. The terms of this Resolution and the attached schedule of rates and charges shall not apply 

in a manner that would present an irreconcilable conflict with the express terms of a lease, 
license, permit, contract or other agreement between GJRAA and an Airport tenant or user. 
 

5. The attached schedule of rates and charges is not intended to be exclusive or exhaustive. The 
Board reserves the right to charge for items not covered by the attached schedule of rates 
and charges, including recovery for damage to the Airport and fines and penalties for 
violation of Airport rules and regulations. 
 

6. The attached schedule of rates and charges shall continue in effect unless and until 
superseded by a further amendment adopted by the Board. It is the Board’s intent to review 
the attached schedule of rates and charges on no less than an annual basis. 
 

7. This resolution shall supersede all previous schedules of rates and charges promulgated by 
the Board. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2022. 

   

Board Members Voting AYE  Board Members Voting NAY 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

   



Page 3 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

  GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY 

  ___________________________________ 

ATTEST:  Chairman 

________________________________   

Clerk   

 

 

 

  

 
 
  



Page 4 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES 
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT 

 
I. General Requirements 

 
Consent 
Airport tenants and users agree to be bound by this schedule of rates and charges by accessing 
the Airport, including for the conduct of commercial activities, or by seeking facilities, supplies 
or services from GJRAA. No express consent is required. 
  
Deadline for Payment 
Payment shall be due and payable with thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice, bill or other 
notice of payment obligation, unless directed otherwise by GJRAA. 
 
Payment of Rates and Charges 
All payments due GJRAA shall be paid to the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority, 2828 
Walker Field Drive, Suite 301, Grand Junction, Colorado, 81506, unless directed otherwise by 
GJRAA. 
 
Interest 
GJRAA reserves the right to charge interest on any rates and charges owed but not paid when 
due at the rate of three percent (3%) per month from the due date until receipt of payment. Any 
partial payments received on said indebtedness shall be applied first to accrued interest, and then 
to principal. 
 
Inspection of Books and Records 
GJRAA reserves the right to seek inspection of books and records for the limited purpose of 
establishing proper calculation and payment of rates and charges imposed hereunder. 

 
Remedies for Nonpayment 
GJRAA reserves the right to seek recovery of all rates and charges due and payable, and interest 
thereon, as well as incidental and consequential damages and attorney’s fees. GJRAA may 
pursue all remedies available under law, including without limitation, termination of a lease, 
license, permit, contract or other agreement; retention of a security deposit, bond or contract 
security; or suit for specific performance, injunctive relief or money damages.  

 
  



Page 5 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

 
 

II. Aircraft Operators and Aircraft Ground Service Operators 
 
A. Fees 

 
Landing Fees 
 

Class of Aircraft Fee Per Landing 
Commercial Signatory Aircraft Landing Weight $2.14/1,000 lbs.  
Commercial Non-Signatory Aircraft Landing Weight $3.80/1,000 lbs.  
General Aviation Aircraft $0.00 
Military Aircraft $0.00 
 

• No landing fee will be assessed in the event an aircraft lands at the Airport due to a 
declared emergency. 

• A full landing fee will be charged for Ferry Flights landing at the Airport, and for 
unscheduled landings of aircraft originating from another airport and diverted to the 
Grand Junction Regional Airport due to weather, mechanical, or other reasons other 
than declared emergencies. 

• A one-half (½) landing fee will be charged for each landing performed in 
conjunction with a training flight. 

• No landing fee will be assessed in the event an aircraft departs from the Airport for 
another destination and, without making a stop at another airport, is forced to return 
to and land at the Airport because of weather, mechanical or other similar emergency 
or precautionary reasons. 

 
Joint Use Space Fees 
Aircraft Operators that utilize the ticket queuing space, security, passenger boarding area, 
and baggage claim in the Airport’s terminal building in a particular month shall pay their pro 
rata share of the 26,488 total square feet at a cost of $41.02 per square foot per year.  The 
pro rata share shall be based on the total number of enplaned revenue passengers during said 
month.  

 
Preferential Use Space Fees 
Aircraft Operators that rent preferential use space, including airline ticket counters, office 
space, and garage/baggage space shall pay $41.02 per square foot per year. 
 
 

  



Page 6 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

Other Fees 
 

• Loading Bridge - $16.19 fee per turn. A loading bridge turn shall mean each time an 
aircraft is “connected” to the loading bridge. If an aircraft enplanes and deplanes 
passengers without disconnecting, this will count as one “turn”. 

• Fuel Purchase - Purchasing fuel (gasoline and/or diesel) from the airside GJRAA 
fuel tank shall pay actual fuel cost plus $1.00 per gallon. 

 
 

B. Reports/Billing 
 

On or before the 10th of each month, each Aircraft Operator or Aircraft Ground Service 
Operator at the Airport shall submit to the Airport administration offices such reports of the 
preceding month’s activities as GJRAA may request to enable GJRAA to compute the rates 
(also referred to, in some cases, as fees above), charges, and other monies owed by the 
Aircraft Operator or Aircraft Ground Service Operator hereunder.  The reports shall be 
attested to as correct to the best of the signer’s knowledge by the Aircraft Operator or 
Aircraft Ground Service Operator or its designee.  Any subsequent changes in the 
information will be reported to GJRAA as soon as practical; but in no event more than seven 
(7) days from their discovery.   
 
The reports shall be submitted in a format provided by or approved by GJRAA.  GJRAA 
reserves the right to obtain clarification of any matter contained in the reports, or for 
additional information from the Aircraft Operator or Aircraft Ground Service Operator for 
Airport marketing, statistical, fee-setting, or other purposes.  Note: Reports not submitted 
by the end of the 10th of each month may be subject to a $100 per day late fee.   

 
III. Ground Transportation Operators  

 
Ground Transportation Operators shall include all shuttles, courtesy vehicles, 
limousines/sedans, taxis, transportation network companies, sightseeing tours, and 
buses (excluding mass transit buses operated by, or under contract with, a public 
entity). 
 
Ground Transportation Operators shall pay GJRAA the following fee: 
 

Number of Seats Trip Fee 
1-8 $2.50 
9-15 $3.75 
16+ $8.00 

 
Hotel/Motel Courtesy Vehicle Operators 
 
Each Hotel/Motel Courtesy Vehicle Operator shall pay GJRAA a per trip fee equal to 25% 
of the applicable TNC rate of $2.50/trip for a fee of $.63/trip multiplied by the number of 
trips each month.  Fee shall be paid quarterly, unless other payment arrangements are made 
between the Operator and GJRAA.  Hotel/Motel Courtesy Vehicle Operators shall only pick 



Page 7 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

up and drop off at the Airport the patrons of their respective hotels/motels, and not persons 
who are not patrons of their hotels/motels. 
 
Off-Airport Parking Providers   
 
Each Off-Airport Parking Provider shall pay GJRAA a monthly fee equal to 10% of 
monthly gross revenues.  This applies to all hotel/motel operators offering parking to guests 
or non-guests of the hotel/motel for a fee in addition to the cost of a nightly room rate, 
provided that the hotel/motel operator only shall be required to pay GJRAA the percentage 
of monthly gross revenues associated with parking by Airport passengers.  In addition, 
shuttle vehicles from each said company shall also pay GJRAA a trip fee as previously 
defined. 
 
Compliance   
 
Failure to comply or to operate without a permit may result in a $100 fine per occurrence.   



Page 8 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

 
B. Miscellaneous Provisions Applicable to Ground Transportation Operators 
 

No Diversion of Passengers 
 
Ground Transportation Operators shall not, through their officers, agents, representatives, or 
employees, divert or cause to be diverted any prospective customer to a location off of 
Airport property, in order to pick up said customer or item off of Airport property and 
thereby avoid paying the fees that would otherwise be owed to GJRAA.  For example, a 
Ground Transportation Operator shall not instruct a customer to walk or utilize a 
Hotel/Motel Courtesy Vehicle to be transported or to transport an item off of Airport 
property in order to then pick-up the customer at a hotel/motel off of Airport property to 
avoid paying fees.   
 
Signage 
 
Ground Transportation Operators serving the Airport shall display signage on their vehicles 
identifying the Ground Transportation Operator and/or such other identification as GJRAA 
may request to enable GJRAA to determine whether the vehicle is authorized to provide 
ground transportation, which includes, in the case of commercial limousines/sedans/SUVs, a  
stamp or sticker issued by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission. 
  



Page 9 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

IV. Fueling Operations 
 
A. Fuel Flowage Fees 
Fuel Providers shall pay a fuel flowage fee to GJRAA on all fuel sold at the Airport to military, 
government and general aviation aircraft fuel purchasers.  Unless specified in an airline 
operating agreement, Commercial Aircraft Operators operating out of the terminal building are 
excluded from fuel flowage fees.  

 
The following fuel flowage per gallon rates apply: 
 

 
Type 

 
Full Service FBO 

 

Self Service 
Commercial 

Operator 
Self-Fueler 

Avgas $0.1017  $0.1017  $0.1017  
Jet A $0.1017  $0.1017  $0.1017  
Military $0.1017 $0.1017 $0.1017 

 
The Fuel Provider shall be deemed to owe its fuel flowage fee to GJRAA on the date the fuel is 
delivered by the Fuel Provider to the fuel purchaser involved, regardless of when or whether 
that fuel purchaser subsequently pays for said fuel. The Fuel Provider shall pay the fuel flowage 
fee required hereunder to GJRAA within thirty (30) days following the end of each calendar 
month in which a fuel sale is deemed to occur. 
 
B. ARFF Standby Services for “Rapid Refueling” Operations 
Fuel Providers shall pay GJRAA one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per hour, billable in 15-
minute increments per rescue truck providing coverage for any requested Aircraft Rescue 
Firefighting (ARFF) standby services associated in any way whatsoever with the fueling of an 
aircraft while that aircraft’s engine(s) is/are in operation (“rapid refueling”).   The ARFF 
Standby Service charge begins when the rescue truck leaves the ARFF bay, or from the current 
location of the rescue truck if not in the ARFF bay.  The ARFF Standby Service charge 
terminates when the rescue truck has returned to the ARFF bay, or back to the original location 
of the rescue truck if not in the ARFF bay. 
 
C. Rental Car Fuel Station Fees 
Rental Car Fuel Station Operators purchasing fuel (gasoline) from the GJRAA landside fuel 
tank shall pay actual fuel cost plus up to $1.00 per gallon. 

 



Page 10 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

V. Leases of Airport Property  
 
Terminal Building Fee 
Non-Aircraft Operator tenants of the terminal building leasing exclusive space and not operating 
under a current operating agreement will pay $34.85 per square foot per year.   
 
Airside Leases 
New Airside Leases will have a rate equal to the greater of fair market value or the maximum 
price per square foot being charged to current lessees. For the period 4/1/2022 – 3/31/23, the 
maximum price is $0.2326 per square foot. For the current rate contact the Authority. 
 
Rental Car Service Area 

 
 4/1/22 – 3/31/23 

Cost per sq. ft. per month 
Ground $0.2112 
Building $0.4559 

 
 

 
 



Page 11 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

VI. OTHER  
 
A. Security Badge Fees 

 
SIDA and Sterile Area Badges:   

Includes Criminal History Records Check (“CHRC”) fingerprinting, Security Threat 
Assessment (“STA”), photo, paperwork, required training class and identification media 
badge. 
 
Initial Issue ........................................................................................$110.00 
 
Renewal...............................................................................................$75.00 

 
AOA Badges: 

Includes STA, photo, paperwork, required training class and identification media badge. 
 
Initial Issue ..........................................................................................$45.00 
Renewal...............................................................................................$35.00 

 
Change from AOA Badge to SIDA Badge 
 Initial Issue ........................................................................................$110.00 
  
Lost or Not Returned Badges 

Charge to employer for ID not returned ...........................................$250.00 
Lost badge - 1st replacement .............................................................. $50.00 
Lost badge - 2nd replacement ........................................................... $100.00 
Lost badge - 3rd replacement ............................................................ $300.00 

 
Keys 

Initial Issue ..........................................................................................$15.00 
Replacement- If broken.......................................................................$15.00 
Replacement- If lost or stolen $100.00 plus the actual cost for re-keying the locks and 
producing additional key(s). 

  



Page 12 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

 
B. Airport Parking Violations:  
 

 Fine paid within 
14 days 

Fine paid after 
14 days 

Parking Violation – Curbside $75 $150 
Parking Violation – Designated Short-term Parking 
(per day)  

$15 $25 

Parking Violation – Permit Parking (per day) $30 $45 
Handicap Parking Violation (per day) $75 $150 

 
Payments of parking violations are made directly to Clancy Systems International, Inc.  
Payment of tickets can be made through mail by check, or online by check or credit card 
(Visa or MasterCard).   
 
 
C. Terminal Parking: 

 
20 minutes or less FREE 
More than 20 minutes $2.00 each additional 20 minutes 
Daily maximum $12.00 

 
 

D. Internet and Phone Service: 
 

Service Provided Monthly Fee 
Internet $75 
Telephone $30 

 
E. Billable Staff Time: 

 
Staff Level Hourly Rate 
Level 1 $100 
Level 2 $75 
Level 3 $50 

 
 

F. Monthly Aircraft Tie-Down Fee on Designated GJRAA Maintained Ramp:  
Aircraft less than 12,500 pounds - $60 per month 

 
 

G. Colorado Open Record Request (CORA) 
CORA items are subject to a rate of $30.00 per hour (15-minute increments) after the first 
hour of staff time and $0.25 per page of copied material. Payment is required prior to 
release of CORA items. 
 



Page 13 of 13 
Effective January 1, 2023 

H. Credit Card Payment Convenience Fee 
 Payments made to the Authority via credit card will be assessed a 4% convenience fee. 
 

I. Lease Transfer Fee 
A fee of $250 will be charged to cover administrative and legal fees associated with the 
execution of a lease transfer. 

 


	12 December 13 2022 Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	I. Call to Order
	II. Agenda
	A. Board of Commissioners Holiday meal

	III. Adjournment
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance
	III. Approval of Agenda
	IV. Commissioner Comments
	V. Citizens Comments
	VI. Consent Agenda
	A.  November 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes 1
	- Approve the November 15, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes.

	B.  November 29, 2022 Meeting Minutes 2
	- Approve the November 29, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes.

	C. Asset Disposal 3
	- Approve the disposal of one asset and authorize the Executive Director or her designee to negotiate a disposal method on behalf of the Airport that brings the highest and best value to the airport.


	VII. Action
	A. 2023 Grant Applications 4
	- Approve the four 2023 Airport Improvement Program grant applications for the Runway 12/30 replacement program and Taxiway Rehabilitation Design and authorize the Executive Director to sign and submit the applications to the Federal Aviation Administ...

	B. Resolution No. 2022-006: Delegation of Authority 5
	- Adopt Resolution No. 2022-006: Resolution of the Board of Commissioners Regarding Delegation of Authority.

	C. Resolution No. 2022-007: Rates and Charges 6
	- Adopt Resolution No. 2022-007: Rates and Charges, effective January 1, 2023.


	VIII. Discussion
	A. Airport Development Plan Presentation – InterVISTAS
	B. 2023 Officer & Committee Appointments
	C. 2023 Draft Board Meeting Calendar
	D. Airline Use & Lease Agreement Update

	IX. Staff Reports
	A. Executive Director Report (Angela Padalecki)
	B. Finance and Activity Report (Shelagh Flesch)
	C. Capital Improvement Plan Update (Colin Bible)

	X. Any other business which may come before the Board
	XI. Adjournment

	12 December 13, 2022 Board Packet.pdf
	12 December 13, 2022 Board Packet.pdf
	11. November 15, 2022- Regular Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Board
	Commissioner Shrader made a motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2022-004 to adopt the 2023 Budget and appropriate funds for 2023. Commissioner Velarde seconded the motion. Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Shrader, yes; Commissioner Brabaek, yes; Commissioner M...
	Commissioner Brabaek made a motion to Approve the standard form Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Concession Agreement and authorize the Executive to approve individual agreements using this standard form in accordance with the April 19, 2022 Delegation of...
	Commissioner Brabaek made a motion to Adopt the proposed revisions to the Air Service Incentive Program. Commissioner Velarde seconded the motion. Voice Vote: All Ayes; motion carries.
	Commissioner Marshall made a motion to Approve the standard agreement for professional services with Crawford, Murphy, & Tilly, Inc. (CMT) for air service development consulting services and delegate authority to the Executive Director to authorize wo...


	11. November 29, 2022- Special Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Board
	Commissioner Tufly made a motion Adopt resolution no. 2022-005 to approve and submit the application for Colorado SIB loan 23-GJT-SIB-01. Commissioner Marshall seconded the motion. Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Shrader, yes; Commissioner Brabaek, no; C...


	Binder1.pdf
	3. AIS - Asset Disposal
	4. AIS - 2023 Grant Applications
	4.1 GJT Grading and Drainage FAA Grant Application
	4.2 GJT Pavement Design Grant Applicaiton
	4.3 GJT Temp FAA NAVAID Grant Application
	4.4 GJT TW A & TW C Rehab Grant Application
	5. AIS - Resolution 2022-006 - Delegation of Authority
	5.1 Resolution 2022-006 Delegation of Authority
	6. AIS - Resolution - Rates and Charges
	6.1  Resolution 2022-007 Rates and Charges
	Consent
	Airport tenants and users agree to be bound by this schedule of rates and charges by accessing the Airport, including for the conduct of commercial activities, or by seeking facilities, supplies or services from GJRAA. No express consent is required.
	Deadline for Payment
	Payment shall be due and payable with thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice, bill or other notice of payment obligation, unless directed otherwise by GJRAA.
	Payment of Rates and Charges






